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CHAIR COFFIN:  
I will open the Senate Committee on Taxation meeting with a couple of 
announcements. I sent letters dated March 31 (Exhibit C) to United States 
Senator Harry Reid, Congresswoman Dina Titus, Congresswoman 
Shelley Berkley and Congressman Dean Heller asking them to support the Sales 
Tax Fairness and Simplification Act from the 111th United States Congress. 
 
The Nevada Legislature has done all the work necessary to participate in the 
interstate compact known as the Streamlined Sales and Use Tax Agreement, 
and we are losing millions of tax dollars spent by Nevada residents on remote 
sales via the Internet. This is not from brick-and-mortar retailers in Nevada but 
from people out of state. We are losing out on revenue that would help our 
schools and services. This is not about tax access to the Internet. 
 
I will open the hearing on Senate Bill (S.B.) 61. 
 
SENATE BILL 61: Revises provisions governing the authorized uses of money in 

a school district mitigation fund. (BDR 32-504) 
 
SENATOR DEAN A. RHOADS (Rural Nevada Senatorial District): 
The Eureka County School District is in my Senate District, and I am here to 
support them on S.B. 61, which will help the District by allowing them to use 
mitigation funds to maintain educational programs and make bond payments in 
the event of declining revenue. This allows the District flexibility in maintaining 
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their financial health and quality programs. This is why the mitigation fund was 
established; S.B. 61 allows the District to use this variable revenue source to 
the best advantage of their students, staff and schools.  
 
BEN ZUNINO (Superintendent, Eureka County School District):  
This bill will help us save jobs and address financial situations during these 
critical times. The bill would allow us to retain people. I have included three 
letters of support (Exhibit D) from Storey County School District, Lincoln County 
School District and the Eureka County Board of Commissioners. 
 
BOB BURNHAM (Board Secretary, Eureka County School District): 
I have a chart (Exhibit E) which depicts the Ad Valorem Revenue for Eureka 
County School District over the last 15 years. From 1996 to 2003, we lost 
75 percent of our Ad Valorem Revenue. This has been the history of Eureka 
County, very much like a roller coaster. We had to lay off 40 percent of our 
high school teachers in 2003. We need this bill to even out the peaks and 
valleys in our revenue flow so we can hire and maintain a staff to prepare our 
children to compete in the larger world. We will be having a new mine coming 
online which will increase our student body over the next two to three years. 
This increases the need to level our revenue flow to meet this future need. 
 
BJORN SELINDER (Eureka County Board of Commissioners): 
Today I am speaking on behalf of the Eureka County Board of Commissioners. 
Given the testimony of Mr. Zunino and Mr. Burnham you can see the fiscal 
swings in a mining community. The Board of Commissioners support great 
flexibility in the use of the school district mitigation fund. 
 
ROBERT AUMAUGHER (Superintendent, Esmeralda County School District): 
I support S.B. 61 because school personnel will be able to defer revenue that 
could be used more wisely in the future. It is in the best interest of taxpayers 
and children in the District and State. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
I will close the hearing on S.B. 61 and open the hearing on S.B. 255. 
 
SENATE BILL 255: Provides for a partial abatement of the ad valorem taxes 

imposed on certain residential rental dwellings. (BDR 32-65) 
 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/TAX/STAX638D.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/TAX/STAX638E.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/SB/SB255.pdf�


Senate Committee on Taxation 
April 2, 2009 
Page 4 
 
DAVID K. SCHUMANN (Nevada Committee For Full Statehood, Carson City):  
I am speaking in support of S.B. 255 because comments from Alan Molasky of 
Ovation Management Corporation (Exhibit F) are dead on. If you own a rental 
property, the object of investing your money is making a return. If you make a 
profit and the county taxes you at 8 percent, you need to pass that on to the 
tenant.  
 
SENATOR SCHNEIDER: 
Since we passed the property tax cap, I have been concerned because I 
perceived a problem. You can have two houses on the same street in a 
subdivision that the taxes are adjusting differently. In ten years, the 
homeowner’s tax could increase only 3 percent a year and the taxes on the 
house next door are increasing 8 percent per year because the owner has a 
tenant in the house. After the ten-year period, there is a large difference in the 
amount of taxes paid. It is affecting the people who have to rent because they 
have no other option. It places an unfair burden on low-income people. 
Senate Bill 255 is morally the right thing to do because we are taking $30 to 
$40 out of their pocket every week with this unfair tax structure.  
 
ALAN MOLASKY (President, Ovation Development Corporation): 
I will cover portions of Exhibit F. I have been developing real estate in Las Vegas 
for 30 years. I primarily develop apartment projects, and I currently own or 
manage 15 apartment complexes or about 5,000 units. I am here to support 
S.B. 255. I own apartment projects but am also here to support renters. There 
is an inequity in the previous bill in that it caps houses, primary residents, at a 
3-percent increase per year and apartments at an 8-percent increase per year. 
Low-income housing receives an exception under a U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD) guideline. On one of my apartments, the 
8-percent cap has caused the per-apartment unit property tax bill to increase 
from about $765 in 2005 to approximately $1,120 in 2009. When the economy 
improves, these same people are going from $90 dollars to $160 dollars a 
month or $1,800 dollars a year. This is unfair that people in apartments have 
taxes going up 8 percent while homeowners are going up 3 percent. Whatever 
you do should be fair to everybody. 
 
SENATOR SCHNEIDER: 
What is the average increase per month on your apartments? 
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MR. MOLASKY: 
We are paying $765 per unit, per year. If you divide that by 12 months, it 
means it is up $60 a month more in property tax. A 3- or 4-year period is now 
averaging $1,100 per unit, per year, which is about $90 per month. It is going 
from about 10 percent of their rent to 14 percent. 
 
SENATOR SCHNEIDER:  
It is a $30 or $40 increase per unit?  That is substantial for rent—and that is 
just the tax increase. That does not pay for the water, electricity, gardener or 
painting. This bill is a matter of fairness. 
 
SENATOR CARLTON: 
When I get my property tax bill it shows what I would have paid and what the 
cap saved me.  Does a commercial property tax bill have the same comparison? 
 
MR. MOLASKY: 
If it does not, we know what the difference is. 
 
SENATOR CARLTON: 
If the first year property tax increase was 8 percent, how much did it save you 
the first year having the cap?  
 
MR. MOLASKY:   
I can get you the information. Some of the properties are going to increase for 
another three or four years because it is difficult to get the assessor to realize 
that we are in a recession. In their opinion, land is still worth $1 million an acre, 
they have not lowered my assessed value on my apartments. Unless people 
start buying land, to set a lower value, the assessor will continue using the 
value of last year. I will get you the calculation on the 8-percent increase. 
 
SENATOR CARE: 
Just a comment, I am amazed that no one has filed a suit on the 
constitutionality of this situation. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
We passed A.B. No. 489 of the 73rd Session which would have locked us into 
an inflexible format to raise money for local government, although 17 cents of 
property tax comes to the State. The revenue loss, according to the fiscal note, 
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is about $500 million a year. Taxation is going forward to correct the fiscal 
note. 
 
BRODY LEISER (Deputy Executive Director, Department of Taxation):  
In regard to the fiscal note, the Department of Taxation made an error in the 
assumptions made in the preparation of the fiscal note for S.B. 255. We will be 
requesting that the Budget Division reject the fiscal note so we can update and 
correct the information.  
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
Does the statute require you receive a formal rejection from us? 
 
MR. LEISER: 
I am not sure on the answer to your question. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
If there was a mistake, why not consider having the Committee reject your 
fiscal note? 
 
MR. LEISER:  
I will. 
 
BARBARA SMITH CAMPBELL (Ovation Development Corporation): 
You are all dealing with the economic downturn, but before you today is a 
fundamental balancing of policy with fairness to taxpayers. When we are seeing 
the potential for large tax increases in conjunction with drastic cuts in the 
budget, we need to remember that this class of taxpayers is also looking at a 
reduction in hours and pay. We need to look at the fairness for those taxpayers 
who need the services, yet are looking at an 8-percent increase in property tax 
assessment that goes from the owner to the tenant. We support S.B. 255. 
 
SENATOR MCGINNESS: 
Do the apartments you represent qualify for the HUD proposal? 
 
MR. MOLASKY: 
The HUD proposal is for a certain percentage of median income people, and it 
represents a small percentage of the apartments in Las Vegas. 
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SENATOR MCGINNESS: 
Are there not enough apartments in Las Vegas that meet the standard for the 
demand? 
 
MR. MOLASKY: 
It is hard to produce housing at that level. The level is a certain percentage of 
median income, and I have not been able to get the cost that low.  
 
MS. CAMPBELL: 
The HUD standards are different. The HUD standard for Virginia City and Storey 
County is the same as that used on Incline Village. 
 
SENATOR MCGINNESS: 
If the people in your apartment qualify, would the apartment qualify because of 
their income levels? 
 
MR. MOLASKY: 
It is all about the income level.  
 
SENATOR SCHNEIDER: 
On the HUD financing, you can only use 60 percent of the average income for 
the area. In Las Vegas, if the average income was $40,000, the most they 
could make is $24,000. Then it goes on a percentage of what they can pay for 
rent. When Mr. Molasky or other developers build their apartments, they can 
only charge $600 a month rent for their units. Housing and Urban Development, 
through the State Housing Division, put up tax-free bonds which are sold to 
raise revenue. The other part is the land put up by the county or the city which 
becomes the city’s contribution to help with low-income housing. Then the city 
or county waives property taxes on the projects going forward for a number of 
years.  
 
WILLIAM J. MCKEAN (Ovation Development Corporation): 
When we see inequalities in tax bills for residential properties, it is not just for 
the current occupants. If the property is sold, two families move into 
two identical homes and one family could have a tax bill 60 percent lower than 
the other family. One consequence of this economy is property values are at a 
lower level than they have been in years, so this may be a better time to 
balance the inequities. It will not take money away from collections because the 
8-percent cap has already been applied, and those taxes have been paid. In the 
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future when values increase, if not corrected, we are going to be in the same 
situation where identical properties have different tax bills. It does not matter if 
the person is renting or paying a mortgage, the tax should be the same. The 
Department of Taxation draft decision for the Pezzaglia Case No. NTC 08-277 
(Exhibit G) is important to this issue because it deals with the Incline Village 
HUD levels of rent applied on Incline Village properties. This is an issue where 
taxpayers are coming to the Nevada Tax Commission saying that we have a 
problem. Chair Coffin to your concern, the foundation of the tax cap could be 
challenged because of the inequalities in this tax cap. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
I have not seen Exhibit G, so I have not had a chance to review this decision. 
Do you think a decision will be made soon?  
 
MR. MCKEAN: 
This is a draft decision by a hearing officer for the Nevada Tax Commission. We 
just presented it as an illustration.  
 
MR. MOLASKY: 
I have been building apartments for 30 years, and the cost was always steady. I 
would buy land for $7,000 to $8,000 per unit, and the construction was $40 to 
$41 a square foot. Three years ago, new Las Vegas developers started paying 
$1 million to $1.5 million an acre, when I paid $300,000 an acre. Our land base 
goes to $1 million an acre, and those projects are struggling to make their 
payments. In the marketplace, I would bid $40 on a project and it would go to 
$60—a 50-percent increase in an 18-month period.  
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
I would think local governments would be concerned about S.B. 255, but they 
probably saw the mistake in the fiscal note by the Department of Taxation. It 
could have an effect on their budgets. 
 
ROBERT STANLEY HADFIELD (Douglas County): 
I understand the concern, and I am even more concerned because of possible 
rulings with Washoe County’s situation concerning Incline Village. As long as I 
have been involved in the legislative process, I have opposed every tax 
exemption bill because we keep narrowing the tax base. Since 1981, we have 
continuality made changes back and forth to the tax structure, creating 
unintended consequences. The problem with Nevada’s tax structure is that it 
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ends up being viewed as treating one group differently than another. We need 
to review the whole tax structure and not respond to it during Legislative 
Sessions by making continuous changes. The whole Nevada structure does not 
represent any fairness doctrine and to fix something that is so broken should be 
the topic of a review. We need you to come up with a consistent policy that 
takes care of the State’s needs and allows the citizens and assessors to 
understand it, so it can be administered fairly. Go back to the Price Waterhouse 
Study, update it and get our tax system based on the real economy of Nevada. 
 
SENATOR CARE: 
Bill Simon, former United States Treasury Secretary, said, “What the state 
wants is a tax system that looks like it was designed on purpose.” 
 
MR. HADFIELD:  
I would agree. This is not a criticism of this body or previous Legislative 
Sessions. This is an opportunity to understand our narrow tax base that does 
not reflect how our economy works. 
 
SENATOR SCHNEIDER: 
It sounds like you are calling for us to take a breath as we finalize our budgets 
and see where we are. Are you saying to go through the 120-day session, 
finalize the budgets and then come back and put a whole new tax system in 
place for Nevada? 
 
MR. HADFIELD: 
That is what I am saying. 
 
JOSH WILSON (Assessor, Washoe County): 
I signed in neutral on this bill. The discrepancy that is created by two identical 
properties, one increasing at 8 percent and the other one increasing at 
3 percent, raises a potential issue. We have been in favor of a uniform cap 
because it would be easier to administer from an assessment standpoint. We 
would not have to be the cap police to make sure people are not claiming 
3 percent in different counties, and we would not have to send out verifications 
on rents for certain properties. Part of the issue is with the qualification and 
ensuring the owner of an apartment complex is passing the rental credit on to 
the tenants. This becomes another program to administer and with the 
reductions in staff, it becomes difficult. This is more of a fiscal issue than an 
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administrative issue. I am here to discuss the administrative issue and the costs 
and resources associated with the verification. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
Were you recently elected or already with the Assessor’s Office before 2005?  
 
MR. WILSON: 
Yes I was. I have been with the Washoe County Assessor’s Office since 1999. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
Is this the time to revisit A.B. No. 489 of the 73rd Session? 
 
MR. WILSON:  
In Washoe County, we saw our abatements drop roughly 75 percent based on 
the reductions in assessed value that have occurred from last year to this year. 
There are 40 percent of the property owners receiving the benefit of the 
abatement, and 60 percent are not because their values have been adjusted. 
Whether it is A.B. No. 489 of the 73rd Session or a restructuring, like 
Mr. Hadfield suggested, it concerns me that our property tax system must be 
amended in the State’s Constitution which would not allow for future changes. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
We would need a waiver from Leadership, which involves both Houses, but if 
there is an element of fairness, we should not be prevented by rules and 
protocol to do what is right.  
 
ALLEN KRAMER (Treasurer, Carson City): 
We are neutral on S.B. 255. We feel whether it is 3 percent or 8 percent, it is a 
policy decided by the Legislature. I am also concerned about the administrative 
part of this legislation. I would prefer a single rate for all residential and 
commercial properties. 
 
WES HENDERSON (Nevada Association of Counties): 
We are neutral on this bill. We are concerned with the tax bill in this Session 
that deals with exemptions, abatements or redistribution of tax revenue. We 
support Mr. Hadfield; the whole tax system for the State needs to be reviewed 
to make it work in today’s economy.  
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CHAIR COFFIN: 
We have had four counties testify, and all were neutral. I do not know if they 
are sticking by their fiscal note they submitted or if they are sure on the 
accuracy of the fiscal note. I close the hearing on S.B. 255 and open the 
hearing on S.B. 289. 
 
SENATE BILL 289: Establishes a tax credit for certain businesses that donate 

money to school tuition organizations. (BDR 34-84) 
 
SENATOR BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE (Clark County Senatorial District No. 8): 
I am going to discuss a tax credit for businesses that donate money to school 
tuition organizations. I have been an advocate of school choice for many years. 
While many public schools provide excellent educational programs, some 
children are better served in programs designed to meet their individual needs. 
 
The term “choice” encompasses a range of options including magnet schools, 
open enrollment programs, dues enrollment programs, charter schools, 
vouchers, tax credits, tax deductions and home schools. A tax credit is a 
dollar-for-dollar reduction in the actual tax owed. For example, if a business 
owes $900 in taxes and the business donates $400 to a qualified school 
organization, the business may subtract $400 from its tax bill and pay $500. 
 
At the state level, tax credit programs have been proposed in over 40 states 
and are operating in six states: Arizona, Florida, Illinois, Iowa, Minnesota and 
Pennsylvania. Most programs became operational in the late 1990s. There are 
two types of tax credit programs: 
 
1. Education Tax Credit for Expenses. This is a nonrefundable credit granted to 
families who claim public or private school expenses. 
 
2. Education Tax Credit for Contributions to School Tuition Organizations 
(STOs). This is the type of tax credit program created through S.B. 289. It is a 
nonrefundable credit granted to entities that make charitable contributions to 
nonprofit STOs. The STOs distribute tuition scholarships to families who sign up 
to receive a scholarship for their children. 
 
There are few issues more important to the future of Nevada than the education 
of our children. Expanding educational opportunities and the healthy competition 
such expansion promotes is critical to improving the quality of education in 
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Nevada and ensuring all children receive the high-quality education to which 
they are entitled. 
 
Senate Bill 289 establishes a tax credit program in the State of Nevada. 
Beginning in fiscal year 2009, businesses may receive a tax credit for a 
donation of money to a school tuition organization equal to the amount of the 
donation made. An STO is defined as a nonprofit organization that allocates at 
least 90 percent of the annual revenue received from donations for tuition 
grants and scholarships to allow a child to attend a qualified school which is 
chosen by a parent or legal guardian of a child. A qualified school includes a 
private school, a charter school or an empowerment school. Senate Bill 289 
prohibits an STO from limiting the qualified schools at which a scholarship or 
tuition grant may be utilized to only one school. 
 
To monitor the progress of the tax credit program, the measure requires the 
STOs to report data annually to the Department of Education concerning 
donations received, scholarships and tuition grants awarded, and the qualified 
schools where students utilize them. I would like to stress that educational 
choice is an idea whose time has come. It will strengthen society and give 
businesses an incentive to help in education. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
What is your explanation on the empowerment schools? 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
They are included.  
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Is that an amendment? 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
That should be in the legislation.  
 
BILL UFFELMAN (President and CEO, Nevada Bankers Association): 
We support the concept of the taxpayers getting credit for this type of program. 
In addition to the schools, consideration should be given in the bill to businesses 
that donate to a scholarship fund. There is money being given by the banks I 
represent for scholarships that allow students to go and obtain an education. 
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CHAIR COFFIN: 
Section 5 of S.B. 289 lists the type of business taxes from which a person 
could get relief by making a dollar-for-dollar credit. It is not clear that if a 
business donates something and takes a credit against one of those taxes, what 
is to limit them from claiming it on the other taxes.  
 
MR. UFFELMAN: 
As I read the bill, if a business gave $100,000 and the branch taxes were 
$35,000, then you have a $65,000 carryover toward your payroll tax. If you 
did not pay $100,000 in taxes, then you would have a carry forward into future 
years. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
If a casino, which pays the Modified Business Tax for general business and the 
gaming percentage fee, gives money, is there a limitation on claiming it more 
than once?  
 
MR. UFFELMAN: 
Page 2, section 5, subsection 2 of S.B. 289 states, “If the tax credit exceeds 
the amount of the tax due, the taxpayer may carry the amount forward for the 
5 years immediately following the year the donation was made … .”  
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
I guess I did not make myself clear. What if a company makes millions of dollars 
and donates a million dollars and they do not carry it forward, is it possible for 
them to claim it under two different statutes?  
 
RUSSELL J. GUINDON (Senior Deputy Fiscal Analyst): 
As staff reads section 5 and its applicability throughout the various sections of 
the bill, we can talk to legal counsel and make sure the interpretation is correct. 
The Chair’s question has a nonrestricted gaming licensee paying taxes pursuant 
to Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 363B.110, the Modified Business Tax on 
general business, and the gaming percentage tax pursuant to NRS 463.370. 
Can I only take the deduction against one tax or for the various taxes? It needs 
to be clear I cannot take the deduction against the Modified Business Tax and 
the gaming fee.  
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SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
Our staff wrote it with the intent of it being one for one. If it needs to be 
clarified, then we will do it.  
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
We will need clarity. 
 
ANN LORING (Washoe County School District): 
The tuition would be available for students for private schools, charter schools 
or empowerment schools, but charter and empowerment schools in Nevada do 
not have tuition, they are public schools. We recognize there are questions 
concerning educational policy and tax policy with which you are more familiar 
than we. You are facing enormous challenges during this Session, and you are 
struggling to meet your constitutionally required responsibilities to fund 
Kindergarten through Grade 12 education. Given that problem, it would not be 
appropriate to provide tax credits with the resulting decline in revenues in order 
to begin a policy of funding private education. 
 
CRAIG M. STEVENS (Director of Education Policy and Research, Nevada State 

Education Association): 
We oppose the bill on the same grounds. We have had a long-standing objection 
to a voucher program. Because empowerment and charters do not have tuition, 
the donations will go to only one area, the private schools.  
 
JOYCE HALDEMAN (Associate Superintendent, Clark County School District): 
We are in a climate where we would not want to give additional tax breaks to 
anyone. It is hard for me to distinguish between this bill and an actual voucher 
for private schools. If I wanted my student to go to a private school and I 
wanted a voucher, all I would have to do is a make a donation to this 
organization, send my child to the private school of my choice and then receive 
a dollar-for-dollar tax break on my tax bill. It raises the issue of how many 
private donations already go to all schools. In Clark County, The Public 
Education Foundation averages between $2 million and $3 million of donations 
a year. If we were in a economy where you thought it necessary to provide tax 
breaks associated with education, then this bill should be broadened so anyone 
who makes a donation to any school would receive a similar tax break.  
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SENATOR MCGINNESS: 
You indicated we should not be giving tax breaks in this economy. We just 
heard S.B. 255 talking about abatement for residential and rental dwellings. 
Does that fall into the same category? 
 
MS. HALDEMAN: 
I decline to answer. I wish I had the expertise to answer that question. I know 
you all are struggling with funding education properly, and it is a serious 
concern. 
 
JAMES R. WELLS, CPA (Deputy Superintendent, Administrative and Fiscal 

Services, Department of Education): 
The Department is neutral on this bill, but we wanted to clarify that charter and 
empowerment schools are not entitled to tuition. One of the things required in 
this bill is that a report be filed with the Department of Education, and this will 
be one of those reports that will fall by the wayside. It does so for several 
reasons: First, there is no enforcement penalty for not filing. Second, we do not 
know the identity of these institutions or nonprofit organizations. Third, there is 
no requirement for us to do anything with this report. If this bill were to pass, 
these reports would need to go to both the Department of Taxation and the 
State Gaming Control Board which could verify the deductions claimed against 
the taxes. 
 
MR. LEISER: 
The department did submit a fiscal note on S.B. 289. We were unable to collect 
sufficient data for potential donations to school tuition organizations. I want to 
make sure the Committee is aware of the cost to the Department. This would 
require notification costs, updates with our lock box vendors and updates to the 
Department’s Unified Tax System. The total amount is $274,128.  
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
Would it also be an obligation to notify all taxpayers in the State that they could 
donate? 
 
MR. LEISER: 
The notification would go to the taxpayers impacted by the various taxes in 
which they could apply the credit. We estimated 55,536 businesses. The total 
cost for notification is $27,768, but the majority of the expenses to the 
Department would be the cost to update the Department’s Unified Tax System. 
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CHAIR COFFIN: 
I can see the expense on the calculation. Are there cheaper ways of notifying 
taxpayers? We have more than 55,000 businesses requiring notification. 
 
MR. LEISER: 
My understanding of the bill has the credit available toward the Modified 
Business Tax, net proceeds for mines and the bank excise tax. The credit would 
not be utilized toward the business license fee which would have a larger 
number of taxpayers than the Modified Business Tax. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
By specifying the statutes, we have people not paying certain taxes because 
they are a small business. What is our threshold on payroll tax? 
 
MR. LEISER: 
I do not have an answer but will get you the information. 
 
MR. GUINDON: 
There is not a wage threshold under the law. We have tied the Modified 
Business Tax to NRS 612 which is the unemployment compensation statute. If 
you have a liability to report and pay the unemployment insurance, then you 
have a liability for the Modified Business Tax. There are exceptions and 
exemptions for various entities within the Modified Business Tax. There are not 
thresholds with certain wages, so you have to create a profit to be considered a 
business. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
There are no minimum number of employees? 
 
MR. GUINDON: 
No, there is nothing on the number of employees. Sole proprietors or 
partnerships in similar types of entities would not be paying the Modified 
Business Tax. They do not have a liability under NRS 612 for the unemployment 
insurance, so they would be deemed a business for the purposes of the 
modified business tax. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
We do have a number of businesses that would be able to take advantage of 
this as the bill is drawn. 
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MR. LEISER: 
That is an accurate statement Mr. Chair. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
I will close the hearing on S.B. 289 and open the hearing on S.B. 357.  
 
SENATE BILL 357: Authorizes local governments to impose taxes for 

transportation safety and homeland security upon voter approval. 
(BDR 31-93) 

 
SENATOR SCHNEIDER: 
I would like to withdraw S.B. 357 from this hearing. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
I will close this hearing and open the work session discussion. Leadership has 
asked if this Committee would vote a wavier on S.B. 201. 
 
SENATE BILL 201: Authorizes certain counties to impose additional taxes on 

fuels for motor vehicles. (BDR 32-233) 
 

SENATOR TOWNSEND MOVED TO REQUEST A WAIVER FOR S.B. 201. 
 
SENATOR McGINNESS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 

SENATOR CARLTON: 
We have done many waivers but never in this fashion. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
You have to have an application for a waiver signed by the Speaker of the 
Assembly and the Senate Majority Leader. The Legal Division indicated that 
Senator Horsford was directed, if we wanted a waiver, to keep the bill alive. 
 

THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
I will close the work session on S.B. 201 and open the discussion on S.B. 218.  

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/SB/SB357.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/SB/SB201.pdf�
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SENATE BILL 218: Revises provisions governing certain fees charged by and 

certain duties performed by constables. (BDR 20-846) 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
We have an amendment on S.B. 218.  
 
JOE REEL (Deputy Fiscal Analyst): 
We heard S.B. 218 on March 24. The amendment (Exhibit H) addresses the 
following: It gives constables authorization to issue a citation for a driver or 
owner of a vehicle not registered in the State of Nevada. It also increases the 
fee available to constables from $50 to $100 for the service of removing a 
vehicle from public property. Testimony in support of the bill was given by 
Senator David R. Parks, Clark County Senatorial District No. 7. Several 
constables have testified on the bill. The bill allows the constables to issue a 
citation and requires proof of registration.  
 
A video was presented by Senator Parks depicting possible violations with 
registering vehicles, parking around apartment complexes, resident-only parking 
with out-of-state licenses, out-of-state licensed vehicles dropping children off at 
school and other indications of vehicles not properly being registered. The 
proposed amendment in Exhibit H, section 1, subsection 2 reads: 

The constable shall be entitled to collect a fee of $100 to be 
charged against and collected from the person receiving the 
citation. This fee shall be in addition to any fines or fees collected 
by the State, County, or governmental agency in connection with 
the citation.  
 

The second amendment change increases the amount kept by the constable 
when collecting all sums on execution or writ against the defendant. The 
provision allows the constable to collect 2 percent of the first $10,000 and 0.5 
percent on the remaining amount above $10,000. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
We have broad support from the schools and local governments to get this 
money from people who are ignoring the law and not registering their vehicles. 
Do I have a motion? 
 

SENATOR TOWNSEND MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS AS 
AMENDED S.B. 218. 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/SB/SB218.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/TAX/STAX638H.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/TAX/STAX638H.pdf�
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SENATOR SCHNEIDER SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR MCGINNESS: 
On the collection of the fee, for the constable to collect the $100 fee, do these 
people go to justice court? Is this a separate action? 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
Yes, there is a new fee for the constable to enforce the statute. The money 
collected goes into the Governmental Services Tax which is then distributed to 
the schools and local governments. 
 
SENATOR MCGINNESS: 
Constables are not Peace Officers Standards Training (P.O.S.T)-certified. They 
could get into situations that could get out of hand. Was there any talk about 
their training? 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
Yes.  
 
SENATOR CARE: 
The discussion did not focus on P.O.S.T certification but whether constables are 
peace officers. They are under existing law if you look at Exhibit H, section 1, 
subsection 1, paragraph (a). It came up in the context of reasonable suspicion 
and probable cause because they are going to pull over vehicles when they 
think an out-of-state license has not been registered. The testimony was that 
they would not unless it came up while performing the other duties. If when 
serving a writ of execution and there is a car in the driveway with Utah plates, 
they might inquire about the registration. We were given assurances this would 
not be used as an invitation to cruise through apartment complexes. 
 
SENATOR CARLTON: 
I will be opposing the bill because if a police officer writes this ticket, it would 
be one fine and punishment, whereas if a constable is writing this citation, it 
would be a different fine and punishment. The same crime would be punished in 
two different ways by two different groups of peace officers. 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
We are ready for a vote.  
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/TAX/STAX638H.pdf�
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THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATORS CARLTON AND McGINNESS 
VOTED NO. SENATOR WASHINGTON WAS ABSENT FOR THE VOTE.) 
 

***** 
 

CHAIR COFFIN: 
I will open the hearing on S.B. 276. 
 
SENATE BILL 276: Makes various changes concerning land sales agreements. 

(BDR 32-724) 
 
LAURA GRANIER (Lionel Sawyer & Collins): 
The first of two issues raised was making sure the recording requirement 
applied broadly to all land use applications for approvals that require recording 
of NRS 278. Please refer to page 3, section 14 (Exhibit I); the proposed 
amendment reads: 

The county recorder shall not accept any parcel map, map of 
division into large parcels, subdivision plat, boundary line 
adjustment or reversion to acreage for recording without proof of 
payment of the tax imposed by chapter 375 of NRS.  
 

The second issue was not creating a burden for the planners in the local 
agencies. They did not want to conduct an investigation to determine whether 
the new requirements were being complied with. The county recorders will 
enforce this by making sure they do not record anything if the transfer tax has 
not been paid. Applicants are coming in for land use approvals to parcel their 
lands, and they have paid their transfer tax when they buy the 648-acre 
section. They would record their parcel map and the concern is the collection of 
the transfer tax for their sales to individuals. To capture that tax, we have 
added an affidavit the applicant will be required to provide ensuring compliance 
with recording requirements.  
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
That is what the cities were concerned about? 
 
MS. GRANIER: 
We reviewed this with the interested parties and confirmed that it addressed 
their concerns. 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/SB/SB276.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/TAX/STAX638I.pdf�
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CHAIR COFFIN: 
Do we have a motion?  
 

SENATOR TOWNSEND MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS AS AMENDED 
S.B. 276.  
 
SENATOR SCHNEIDER SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 

JOE REEL: 
An amendment submitted with the original bill Exhibit I strikes language out of 
section 7, subsection 15 and moves it into subsection 3 of section 7. It ensures 
that double taxation does not occur but alleviates an issue with county 
recorders. 
 

THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATOR WASHINGTON WAS ABSENT FOR 
THE VOTE.) 
 

***** 
 

CHAIR COFFIN: 
I close the hearing on S.B. 276 and open the hearing on S.B. 158. 
 
SENATE BILL 158: Revises provisions concerning tax increment areas created to 

benefit the Nevada State College. (BDR 22-905) 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
Do we have a motion? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/TAX/STAX638I.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/SB/SB158.pdf�
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SENATOR TOWNSEND MOVED TO DO PASS S.B.158. 
 
SENATOR SCHNEIDER SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATOR WASHINGTON WAS ABSENT FOR 
THE VOTE.) 
 

***** 
 
CHAIR COFFIN: 
I will close the hearing on S.B. 158 at 3:27 p.m. and adjourn the Senate 
Committee on Taxation. 
 
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
 
 
 

  
Mike Wiley, 
Committee Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
  
Senator Bob Coffin, Chair 
 
 
DATE:  
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